

**SNOHOMISH COUNTY COUNCIL
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON**



ORDINANCE NO. 96-043

**AMENDING LICENSING REGULATIONS REGARDING ADULT ARCADES
(PANORAM PREMISES); AMENDING SNOHOMISH COUNTY CODE TITLE 6**

Whereas, counties have the right and duty to enact laws for the protection of the public health, safety, and general welfare and morals; and

Whereas, the Snohomish county council held a public hearing on October 12, 1994, regarding a proposal to establish a moratorium on the acceptance of applications for, or issuance of any county license, permit, or approval, for the establishment, location or licensing of adult entertainment businesses or adult entertainment uses in the county; and

Whereas, at that hearing and subsequent hearings on this subject extensive evidence was presented to the Snohomish county council showing that the establishment of adult entertainment businesses is associated with increased crime. Locally, Kent, Lynnwood, Seattle, Mountlake Terrace, Everett, and Arlington have all concluded that this is the case. Nationally, studies and/or statistics from Whittier, Indianapolis, New York, Cleveland, Los Angeles, Austin, Phoenix, St. Paul, Boston, and the State of Minnesota have been cited as showing that adult entertainment businesses are associated with increased crime; and

Whereas, the evidence presented demonstrated increases in crimes involving prostitution, narcotics, sex-related crimes, and other disruptive behavior are associated with adult entertainment businesses; and

Whereas, extensive evidence presented showed that the establishment of adult entertainment businesses is associated with a decline in property values of nearby property. Locally, Kent, Seattle, and Everett have all concluded that this is the case. Nationally, studies and/or statistics from Indianapolis, Whittier, Los Angeles, Oklahoma City, New York, and Detroit have been cited as showing that adult entertainment businesses are associated with a decline in property values; and

Whereas, the evidence presented demonstrated that negative land use impacts including noise, trash, and traffic problems are associated with adult entertainment businesses; and

Whereas, extensive evidence presented showed that the establishment of adult entertainment businesses is associated with a degradation of the quality of life within a neighborhood. Locally, Kent, Lynnwood, Seattle, Mountlake Terrace, and Everett have all concluded that this is the case; and

Whereas, over 28% of Snohomish county's population is under the age of 18 and there is a compelling need to protect minors from criminal and unlawful activities associated with adult entertainment; and

Whereas, following public notice, a hearing was held on October 12, 1994, whereat testimony was presented which demonstrated the negative secondary effects of adult entertainment described herein; and

Whereas, at that hearing the council adopted Ordinance 94-096 which established a moratorium on the acceptance of applications for, or issuance of any county license, permit, or approval, including but not limited to, business licenses, use permits, or building permits, for the establishment, location, or licensing of adult entertainment businesses or uses in Snohomish county, said moratorium to be effective until January 20, 1995; and

Whereas, at the October 12, 1994, hearing the council directed staff to prepare interim regulatory ordinances for consideration prior to the expiration of the moratorium on January 20, 1995; and

Whereas, staff prepared a proposed interim licensing ordinance and following public notice, the council held a public hearing on January 5, 1995 to consider the proposed licensing ordinance; and

Whereas, the council adopted Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, as an interim measure to expire on January 20, 1996; and

Whereas, the council adopted Ordinance 95-121 on January 3, 1996, extending the interim regulations until July, 20, 1996; and

Whereas, in 1994 the county executive established an "adult entertainment zoning committee" made up of citizens assisted by county staff to report back to the executive in 1995 with recommendations regarding zoning regulations for adult entertainment businesses; and

Whereas, this committee at its first meeting discussed the need to expand its role to include recommendations regarding regulatory ordinances dealing with the licensing and operation of adult entertainment businesses; and

Whereas, the council and executive anticipated at the time of passage of Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, that Ordinance 94-128 would be an interim measure, with final action being based on the findings and report of the adult entertainment zoning committee; and

Whereas, the adult entertainment zoning committee held 12 meetings, reviewed sample ordinances from other jurisdictions, reviewed relevant decisions of the federal and state courts, reviewed studies of the secondary impacts of adult entertainment businesses/uses, reviewed existing licensing regulations in Snohomish county, discussed impacts of adult entertainment and proposed regulations with representatives of law enforcement, licensing authorities, and planning and development services, as well as other matters as reflected in the report of the committee and its attached documentation; and

Whereas, the recommendations of the adult entertainment zoning committee are reflected in the report and proposed ordinance submitted to the county executive and council; and

Whereas, following public notice, the council held a public hearing on _____ 1996 to consider the proposed ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED:

Section 1: Findings and Conclusions.

Based on the testimony and evidence presented, the county council ((makes the following findings)) adopts the findings regarding the adverse secondary impacts of adult entertainment made by the adult entertainment zoning committee as shown below:

- ~~1. Sexually oriented adult entertainment uses are associated with increased rates of crime including, but not limited to, prostitution, narcotics, and sex-related crimes.~~
- ~~2. Sexually oriented adult entertainment uses are associated with declines in property values, especially those of residential areas.~~
- ~~3. Sexually oriented adult entertainment uses are associated with degradation of the quality of life within a neighborhood.~~
- ~~4. Exposure to sexually oriented adult entertainment uses may be particularly harmful to children and minors creating serious adverse effects on their development as mature, disciplined, and social members of the community. This is of particular concern in Snohomish county where over 28% of the population is under 18 years of age.~~
- ~~6. Areas within close walking distance of single and multiple family dwellings should be free of sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses.~~
- ~~7. Areas where children could be expected to walk, patronize or recreate should be free of sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses.~~
- ~~8. Sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses should be located in areas of the county which are not in close proximity to residential uses, churches, parks schools, and other similar facilities or uses.~~
- ~~9. Sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses should be regulated by zoning to separate them from other dissimilar uses just as any other land use should be separated from uses with characteristics different from and incompatible with itself.~~
- ~~10. A reasonable regulation of the location of sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses will provide for the protection of the community and its property values, and protect the residents of the community from the adverse effects of such sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses, while providing to those who desire to patronize sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses such an opportunity in areas within the county which are appropriate for location of sexually oriented adult entertainment land uses; and))~~

A. Adverse secondary impacts related to crime:

1. Adult entertainment uses have a negative impact on law enforcement and are associated with increased rates of crime.
2. As a result law enforcement resources must be augmented and redirected to monitor adult entertainment uses to minimize criminal activity.
3. Adult entertainment uses are especially associated with higher incidents of prostitution, lewd acts, other sex-related crimes, and drug use.

B. Adverse secondary impacts related to property values:

1. Adult entertainment uses have a negative impact on property values, especially the value of residential property.
2. Adult entertainment uses can adversely impact business investment in a neighborhood.
3. Customers of adult entertainment uses may use other businesses nearby and discourage regular customers of those businesses which can further discourage other business investment or reinvestment.
4. A community's image may be negatively affected by the location of adult entertainment uses in it. A positive image is a key part of maintaining property values.

C. Adverse secondary impacts related to quality of life/neighborhood degradation:

1. Experience in other cities has shown that a blighting effect is often experienced in communities where adult entertainment uses are located. This degradation and blighting effect is experienced by both residential and business communities.
2. The location of adult entertainment uses in a neighborhood attracts transients, increases crimes and devalues property. These impacts cause other property owners to move, further contributing to blight and degradation of the neighborhood.
3. Live adult entertainment uses operate late at night which creates late night impacts of traffic and noise which are incompatible with residential uses.
4. Adult entertainment uses do not provide the sort of community business services desired or sought by residential communities. They do, however, for the reasons outlined in these findings, contribute to neighborhood degradation and blight.

D. Adverse secondary impacts related to children:

1. Children are especially vulnerable to negative impacts from exposure to adult entertainment uses because their characters are still in the process of formation.
2. Exposure to adult entertainment uses will often create conflict with the moral and ethical standards parents desire to instill in children.
3. As a result of findings 1 and 2 above, exposure of children to adult entertainment uses can have serious negative impacts regarding children's development as mature, socially responsible adults.
4. Adult entertainment uses near religious facilities, schools, parks, and other facilities or areas where children are likely to be found will increase the likelihood of these negative impacts.
5. The negative impacts on children of adult entertainment is of particular concern in Snohomish county where over 28% of the population is under 18 years of age.

E. Additional adverse secondary impacts:

1. Adult entertainment uses can have a negative impact on public health due to the danger of sexually transmitted diseases.
2. The impacts described above are compounded when the adult entertainment uses are concentrated.
3. Adult entertainment uses are inconsistent land uses in or near residential communities for the reasons above, including but not limited to, the negative impacts of increased crime, lowered property value, exposure of children, and the degrading and blighting effects on a neighborhood.
4. Adult entertainment uses are inconsistent land uses in business districts which are near or serve residential communities for the reasons above, including but not limited to, the negative impacts of increased crime, lowered property value, exposure of children, and the degrading and blighting effects on a neighborhood.
5. For all the reasons cited above the goals of preserving neighborhood character, quality, and viability are adversely affected by the presence of adult entertainment uses.

Further, based on these findings on the negative adverse secondary impact of adult entertainment uses, the report of the adult entertainment zoning committee, and the testimony and evidence presented to the council, the council makes the following additional findings:

1. Specific forms of adult entertainment require specific regulations to address the adverse secondary impacts and partially mitigate their impact on the community. The adult entertainment zoning committee reviewed the various adult entertainment uses and based on the evidence presented to it proposed ordinances appropriate to each form of adult entertainment use.

2. Specific regulations must be used to insure that acts of prostitution, sexual intercourse, or masturbation do not occur within the stations or booths of adult arcades (panoram premises). Evidence has shown such businesses to be at high risk for such activities. For example, the court found in Adult Entertainment Center Inc. v. Pierce County that "...undisputed evidence showed that more than one person sometimes occupied a booth at the same time, that sexual activity was solicited on the premises and did occur in the booths, and that such activity created unsanitary conditions. From this evidence, the council could properly infer that the operation of the panoram machines presented a health hazard, at least in those instances in which there was 2-party sexual activity in the booths, that the conditions of the booths was offensive to decency, and that solicitation outside the booths was a dangerous activity, possessing the potential of violence."

3. The license fees required in this article are necessary as nominal fees imposed as necessary regulatory measures designed to help defray the substantial expenses incurred by the county in regulating the adult entertainment industry.

4. It is necessary to have a licensed manager on the premises of the adult arcade at such times as the adult arcade is offering adult entertainment so that there will at all necessary times be an individual responsible for the overall operation of the adult arcade, including the actions of patrons and employees.

5. It is not the intent of this ordinance to suppress or censor any expressive activities protected by the First Amendment of the United States Constitution or Article 1, Section 5 of the Washington State Constitution, but rather to enact time, place and manner regulations which address the compelling interests of the county in mitigating the secondary effects of adult entertainment establishments.

6. Numerous other jurisdictions have attempted to address these negative secondary impacts through a combination of zoning and licensing regulations. Snohomish County relies on the validation of these methods by the courts in cases such as, but not limited to, Renton v. Playtime Theater and Young v. American Mini Theaters (United States Supreme Court), Kev, Inc. v. Kitsap County (United States Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit), Northend Cinemas v. Seattle and O'Day v. King County (Washington State Supreme Court), and Everett v. Heim (Washington State Court of Appeals).

Section 2. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.001, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.001 Definitions. The following words and phrases used in this chapter shall have the meanings set forth below unless the context indicates otherwise:

(1) "Adult entertainment" means any exhibition, performance or medium which is distinguished or characterized by:

(a) Acts of masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy; or

(b) Fondling or other touching of the human genitals, pubic region, buttocks or female breast; or

(c) Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal; or

(d) Displays of less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, anus, buttocks, or female breast below the top of the areola; or

(e) Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state even if completely covered; or

(f) Any exhibition, performance or dance conducted in a premises where such exhibition, performance or dance is performed within the view of one or more members of the public and is intended or is likely to sexually stimulate any member of the public.

(g) Adult entertainment shall not include the following:

(i) Plays, operas, musicals, or other dramatic works which are not obscene;

(ii) Classes, seminars and lectures which are held for serious scientific or educational purposes;

(iii) Exhibitions or dances which are not obscene.

(h) For this chapter, any exhibition, performance, dance or other medium is obscene:

(i) Which the average person, applying contemporary community standards, would find, when considered as a whole, appeals to the prurient interest; and

(ii) Which explicitly depicts or describes patently offensive representations or descriptions, applying contemporary community standards, of sexual conduct as described in RCW 7.48A.010(2)(b); and

(iii) Which, when considered as a whole, and in the context in which it is used, lacks serious literary, artistic, political or scientific value.

(2) "Employee" means any and all persons who work in or at or render any services directly related to the operation of an adult arcade (panoram) premise regardless of whether that person meets the criteria of a statutory employee, common law employee or independent contractor.

(3) "Manager" means any person who manages, directs, administers or is in charge of, the affairs and/or conduct of any portion of any activity involving adult entertainment occurring at the adult arcade (panoram) premise.

~~(((1)))~~ (4) "Member of the public" is defined as any customer, patron or person, other than an employee, who is invited or admitted to an ((sexually oriented)) adult ((entertainment)) arcade.

~~(((2)) "Sexually oriented adult arcade", "sexually oriented adult panoram", and "sexually oriented adult arcade premise" shall mean any premise on which any sexually oriented adult arcade device is located and to which patrons, customers and/or members of the public are admitted.))~~

~~(((3)) "Sexually oriented adult arcade device" sometimes also know as "panoram", "preview", "picture arcade", or "peep show" means any device which, for payment of a fee, membership fee, or other charge is used to exhibit or display a picture, view, film, videotape, or~~

video disc, live show or other graphic display of "specified anatomical areas." All such devices are denominated under this ordinance by the term "sexually-oriented adult arcade device".))

~~((4) "Specified anatomical areas" means:~~

~~(a) Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic area, anus, or female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola;~~

~~(b) Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state even if completely or opaquely covered.))~~

~~((5) "Specified sexual activities" means:~~

~~(a) Acts of human masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy; or~~

~~(b) Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttock or female breast; or~~

~~(c) Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal.))~~

(5) "Panoram premise" or "adult arcade" means any premise on which any panoram device is located and to which members of the public are admitted. The term panoram premise as used in this chapter does not include movie or motion picture theater auditoriums capable of seating more than five people.

(6) "Panoram", "preview", "picture arcade", "adult arcade device", "panoram device", or "peep show" means any device which, for payment of a fee, membership fee or other charge, is used to exhibit or display a picture, view or other graphic display of adult entertainment. The terms panoram and panoram device as used in this chapter do not include games which employ pictures, views, or video displays or gambling devices regulated by the state or by SCC 6.36.

(7) "Panoram station" means the portion of any panoram premises on which a panoram device is located and from which the panoram picture, view or graphic display is to be viewed.

Section 3. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.005, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.005 ((Sexually-oriented adult)) Adult arcade (panoram) premise location license.

It is unlawful to display, exhibit, expose, or maintain upon any premises, any ~~((sexually-oriented))~~ adult arcade device which is used by a viewer in a booth or stall, without a license to do so, to be designated a "panoram location license"; provided that no license is required if all such devices are contained in a single common area and are not separated by partitions, screens, booths or any other physical barrier or obstruction; provided, further, that no license is required if no fee, membership fee, deposit, purchase, or other charge is paid for using or viewing the ~~((sexually-oriented))~~ adult arcade device or for entering or remaining upon the premises. Each place of business shall have a separate license and the same shall at all times be conspicuously posted and maintained therein. The licensing authority shall prescribe the form of such license, number the same, and shall indicate thereon the number of such devices to be operated thereunder, and the location.

Section 4. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.010, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.010 ~~((Sexually-oriented-adult))~~ **Adult arcade (panoram) device license**. It is unlawful to own and exhibit or display for use, or to place by lease or otherwise for use, exhibit or display with another, any ~~((sexually-oriented))~~ adult arcade device without a license to be designated a "panoram device license" for each device. Panoram device licenses shall be issued for devices at specific locations only and shall not be transferable. The licensing authority shall prescribe the form of such licenses and number the same. Panoram device licenses shall be securely attached to each such device in a conspicuous place.

Section 5. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.015, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.015 **License fees.** The license year shall be from January 1st to December 31st. ~~((License fee amounts shall be prorated quarterly based upon the number of quarters remaining as of the date of application. Fractions of quarters shall be considered as whole quarters for purposes of computing fees.))~~ Annual fees shall be as follows:

- (1) Panoram location license ~~((two hundred twenty (\$220.00)))~~ two hundred sixty five (\$265.00) per year for each location;
- (2) Panoram device license ~~((one hundred fifteen dollars (\$115.00)))~~ one hundred twenty five (\$125.00) per year for each device.

Section 6. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.020, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.020 **License application--Report by county departments.** Any person seeking a panoram location license or panoram device license shall file a written application with the licensing authority for that purpose. The licensing authority, upon presentation of such application and before acting upon the same, shall refer such application to the sheriff's office, which shall make a full investigation as to the truth of the statements contained therein, and shall forward the location license applications only to the fire marshal, the Snohomish health district, and the department of planning and ~~((community))~~ development services, which shall investigate and provide information to the licensing authority concerning compliance of the premises and devices sought to be licensed with this and other applicable county and state health, zoning, building, fire and safety ordinances and laws.

Section 7. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.030, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.030 Inspection of ((sexually-oriented))adult arcade (panoram) premises.

(1) Applicants for any license authorized to be issued under this chapter shall allow the premises and devices sought to be licensed to be inspected in accordance with subsection (2) of this section by authorized inspectors from the licensing authority, sheriff's office, fire marshal's office, Snohomish health district, and department of planning and ((community)) development services.

(2) Licensees operating premises and devices licensed under this chapter shall hold open for routine regulatory inspections by the county during normal business hours, those areas upon the premises which are accessible to the public.

Section 8. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.050, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.050 Applicable general provisions of the license code.

(1) The provisions included in Snohomish county code chapter 6.01, including those governing suspension or revocation of licenses and appeals therefrom, are applicable to the administration and enforcement of all licenses required by this chapter.

(2) If provisions in the specific licensing regulations of this chapter are inconsistent with the provisions of Snohomish county code chapter 6.01, the provisions in the specific licensing regulations of this chapter shall control.

(3) The provisions of Snohomish county code 6.30.020-6.30.055 shall apply to managers and employees of adult arcades.

Section 9. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.070, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.070 Specifications of premises.

~~(((1) In no event may the view into the booth or stall be obstructed, or the booth or stall be designed, in such a way as to prevent the determination of the number of persons therein.))~~

~~(((2) Locked Doors. The licensee shall not permit any doors to public areas on the premises to be locked during business hours.))~~

~~(((3) Illumination. The licensee shall maintain illumination generally distributed in all parts of the premises available for use by the public in compliance with the Snohomish county building code, at all times when the panoram is open or when any member of the public is permitted to enter and remain therein. Illumination within each panoram booth or stall must be sufficient to allow the determination of the number of persons therein.))~~

~~(((4) Signs. The licensee shall permanently post and maintain on the interior and exterior of each booth or stall on the panoram premises a sign stating:~~

~~Occupancy of this booth is at all times limited to only one person. Violators are subject to criminal prosecution under Snohomish county code 6.28.080.~~

~~Each sign shall be conspicuously posted. The letters and numerals shall be on a contrasting background and be no smaller than three-fourths inch (3/4") in height.)~~

(1) The entire interior of the panoram premises shall be arranged in such a manner so that each panoram station therein is entered from a continuous main aisle at least five feet (5') in width.

(2) The view from the continuous main aisle of any person inside a station shall not be obstructed except by a door, curtain or other screening device of no greater dimensions than that permitted in this section; and in no event may the view from the continuous main aisle into the station be obstructed, or the station be designed in such a way as to prevent the determination of the number of persons therein.

(3) The bottom of any door, curtain or screening device shall be not less than twenty-seven inches (27") above the floor of the panoram station in panoram stations where the occupant sits in a chair or on a seating surface to view the panoram. In panoram stations where the occupant stands to view the panoram, the bottom of any door, curtain or screening device shall not be less than thirty-six inches (36") above the floor of the panoram station.

(4) No panoram station having a door, curtain or other screening device at its entrance shall contain any chair or other seating surface unless the door, curtain or screening device provides, at a location between sixty-six inches (66") and seventy-eight inches (78") above the floor, an opening twelve inches (12") in height and at least twenty-four inches (24") in width which provides an unobstructed view through either open space or clear and clean window glass, to the side walls and back wall of the station. Any chair or seating surface in such panoram station shall not provide a seating surface more than twenty inches (20") in either length or width and shall not be higher than twenty (20") inches from the floor. There shall be no more than one (1) such chair or seating surface in any panoram station.

(5) Doors to areas on the premises which are available for use by persons other than the licensee or employees of the licensee shall not be locked during business hours.

(6) Sufficient lighting shall be provided in and about the parts of the premises which are open to and used by the public so that all objects are plainly visible at all times and all parts of such premises shall be illuminated so that patrons or others on any part of the premises shall be able to read the Washington State Liquor Control Board card or other written instrument, printed in eight-point type. A copy of the Washington State Liquor Control Board card, printed in eight-point type, is shown in Figure 1. It or an accurate photocopy or other reproduction thereof is presumed admissible in any judicial proceedings commenced under this chapter.

FIGURE 1

WASHINGTON STATE LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
OLYMPIA

Lighting Regulation (WAC 314-16-030) (Printed in 8 point type)

All holders of retail licenses for the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises shall provide in and about the parts of said premises, which are open to and used by the public, sufficient lighting so that all objects are plainly visible at all times and all parts of such premises shall be illuminated so that patrons on any part of the premises on which intoxicating liquor is served shall be able to read a menu or liquor list printed in 8 point type.

Note: If unable to read this you need more light. Retain this card for future reference.

LIQ 478-61-4/96

(7) The entire floor area of a panoram station must be level with the continuous main aisle. No steps or risers are allowed in any such station.

(8) There shall be permanently posted and maintained in at least two conspicuous locations on the interior of every panoram premises a sign stating substantially the following: "Occupancy of any station (booth) is at all times limited to only one person. There is to be no masturbation in the panoram stations (booths) or on the panoram premises. Violators are subject to criminal prosecution under SCC 6.01.220."

Each sign shall be conspicuously posted. The letters and numerals shall be on a contrasting background and be no smaller than three-fourths-inch in height.

~~((5))~~ (9) ~~((Warning Devices.))~~ The licensee shall not operate or maintain any warning system or device, of any nature ~~((ef))~~ or kind, for the purpose of warning customers or patrons or any other persons occupying panoram ~~((booths or stalls))~~ stations located on the licensee's premises that sheriff's deputies or county health, fire, licensing, or building inspectors are approaching or have entered the licensee's premises.

Section 10. Snohomish County Code section 6.28.080, adopted by Ordinance 94-128 on January 5, 1995, is amended to read:

6.28.080 Unlawful acts.

~~((In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided herein or by law, t))~~ The following unlawful acts are punishable under the criminal penalties identified in 6.01.220 SCC.

(1) A panoram ~~((booth or stall))~~ station subject to the requirements of this chapter may only be occupied by one (1) person at any one time. It is unlawful for any person to occupy such a ~~((booth or stall))~~ station at the same time it is occupied by any other person.

(2) It is unlawful to stand or kneel on any chair or seating surface in a panoram ~~((booth or stall))~~ station.

(3) It is unlawful for any owner, operator, manager, employee or other person in charge of premises for which a panoram location license is required, to warn, or aid and abet the warning of, customers or patrons or any other persons occupying panoram ~~((booths or stalls))~~ stations located on the licensee's premises that sheriff's deputies or county health, fire, licensing or building inspectors are approaching or have entered the licensee's premises.

(4) It shall be unlawful to masturbate in a panoram station or in the panoram premises.

PASSED this 24th day of June, 1996.

SNOHOMISH COUNTY COUNCIL
Snohomish County, Washington

Richard C Johnson
Chair

Approved as to Form Only:

[Signature]
Special Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

ATTEST:

Sheila McAlister
Clerk of Council *asst.*

- APPROVED
 VETOED
 EMERGENCY

DATE: 6/24/96

[Signature]
County Executive

ATTEST:

Manlyp B. Abel

D-1